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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management
Constitution
The Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memorandum, Articles of Association and Scheme of Delegation are the primary
governing documents of the Trust.

The charitable company operates as iExel Education Trust. Within the Trust there are currently three academies
that operate as Feversham Girls' Academy, Bronte Girls' Academy and IQRA Primary Academy.

Details of the Directors who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administrative details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a Member (as per the Articles of Association of the Trust).

Directors' and Trustees' indemnities

The Trust has purchased insurance to protect Directors and Members from claims arising against negligent acts,
errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. Further details are provided in Note 14.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Directors

The Members may appoint by ordinary resolution up to 5 Directors. The Members may also appoint staff
Directors through such process as they may determine, as per the Articles of Association. '

All Directors are appointed based upon the contribution they can make to the development and future success of
the Trust. When selecting and recruiting new Directors, appointments are made after consulting local community
groups and businesses dependent on the skills needed, or by using SGOSS and Academy Ambassador
programmes. An interview process is undertaken by a sub-committee of the Board of Directors.

The term of office for any Director shall be 4 years. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of trustee,
any Director may be re-appointed or re-elected.

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Directors

The training and induction provided for new Directors depends on their existing experience. Where necessary,
induction and training is provided on charity, educational, legal, safeguarding and financial matters. All new
Directors are given a tour of the academy | academies and the opportunity to meet with staff and students. All
Directors are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other
documents that they will need to undertake their role as Directors. As there are normally only one or two new
Directors a year, induction tends to be done formally and is tailored specifically to the individual.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Organisational structure

During the year the Trust continued to operate a unified management structure. The structure consists of 4
levels: The Members, the Directors, the Executive Group and the Senior Leadership Team. The aim of the
management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels.
However, the structure is reviewed annually to ensure optimum strategic and operational efficiencies.

The organisational structure reflects the following principles, and is covered in detail of the Scheme of Delegation
of the Trust.

Hv.

VI.

VII.

The Members of the Trust define the Object, Purpose and Ethos.

The Directors, who in part form the Governing Council, have overall responsibility and ultimate decision-
making authority for the vision, strategy aspects of the Trust, including the establishment and running of
academies and free schools (academies). This is largely exercised through strategic planning and the
setting of policy. It is managed through the business planning, monitoring of budgets, performance
appraisal, the setting and monitoring of standards and the implementation of quality assurance processes.
The Directors have the power to direct change where required to ensure that the Object, Purpose and
Ethos are maintained. ‘

The Directors delegate their responsibilities for the strategic and operational aspects of the Trust and each
academy and the whole of the funding granted by the Department of Education for the benefit of that
academy directly to the Trust Central Team, led by the CEO through a Scheme of Delegation. The funding
granted for each academy must be applied only to that academy, subject to the requirements of the
Scheme.

The Local Governing Body (LGB) is responsible for overseeing the academic, safeguarding and
community link/relations aspects for each academy. The Principal of each academy is an ex-officio
member of the LGB for that academy.

The Central Team (led by the CEO, who is also the Accounting Officer), operates the Trust at an
executive level, implementing the vision laid down by the Directors and reporting back to them regularly.
The CEO is responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of
staff through appointment boards, delegated to the Central Team appropriately, as per policies.

Some spending control is devolved to Members of the Senior Leadership Team with financial limits above
which the Trust Central Team must countersign as per the Financial Procedures Policy.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the management personnel, was developed and
approved by the Board of Directors, after taking advice from the Chief Executive Officer and following guidance
from the relevant professional pay review bodies. The pay level of the CEO is set by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee (as per the Executive Pay Policy) following extensive Performance Management
review and scrutiny.

The running of the Pay Palicy is delegated to the CEO and monitored by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee. All details for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel are set out in the staff
Pay Policy.

Remunerating of Executive management personnel is set at an individual level, and where possible the Directors
have taken external professional advice which includes benchmarking, market trends and advice on structuring
incentives. Salaries are linked to length of performance, experience and length of service.

The Board always bear in mind the charitable status of the Trust and recognise the fact that the Trust received
funding under a funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education, and therefore ensure the
remuneration paid to senior management personnel never exceeds a reasonable amount that provides value for
money to the Trust. The performance of Senior Management Personnel is reviewed annually to ensure
continuing value of money, as per the Executive Pay Policy.

Total remuneration paid to senior management personnel is set out in the notes to the finance statements.
Engagement with employees

The Trust's most valuable asset is its staff. The success of the Trust is based on having outstanding leaders,
teachers and support staff. A vital element of achieving this is through staff engagement. As an organisation
committed to equality and fairness for all, the Trust is committed to obtaining the views and thoughts of all staff.
The Principals have a weekly staff meeting with all teaching staff, all staff have clear objectives and receive
feedback twice a year, and the Trust engage regularly with the trade unions. All staff are aware of the main
priorities included in the School Development Plan. As pupil numbers and needs change over time, regular
discussion and consuiltation is undertaken with staff to advise them of any potential changes to the future staffing
structure. There are regular meetings between the CEO and Principals (approximately monthly).

As an organisation completely dependent upon staff performance, the Trust recognises the need to keep staff
informed and motivated.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Structure, governance and management (continued)

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The main stakeholders of the Trust are pupils and parents/guardians. Historically schools have always had an
interest in ensuring that these stakeholders are embraced, and their requirements met.

The start of the process of pupil/parent engagement is to ensure they are aware of the Trust and what and how it
does things. The Trust engage directly with the feeder primary school and hold open evenings for potential new
pupils. Once a pupil starts with the Trust, engagement with pupils/parents/guardians is continuous and often
includes: -

. pupil feedback regarding specific pieces of work and overall progress
. parental feedback to parents regarding progress and other matters

The school have termly reports that document the progress of pupils and identification of any gaps, this is shared
with pupils and parents/guardians. The school will also contact parents about any relevant material or event they
believe parents should be aware of, for example, attendance, accidents, behaviour, etc. The involvement of
parents/guardians in their child's education is paramount.

The Trust also has important suppliers that provide services which include:

. Supply Teachers and Support Staff

. Cleaning

. Building Repairs and Maintenance

. ICT

. Professional Services such as Occupation Health, Payroll, HR, Accountancy etc.

. Marketing, PR and Legal

The Trust seeks to engage with such suppliers as partners, rather than pure suppliers. When agreeing any new
contract, the Trust seeks to ensure value for money through an open tendering process, so price alone is not the
driver. The Trust wants efficient, effective and economic services from suppliers, and wants to build lasting
partnerships that underpin the delivery of outstanding services. The Trust takes its time when re-negotiating such
contracts to ensure it gets the best possible service for the best price.

The Trust has very few customers to whom it sells, this tends to be one-off and miscellaneous.

Page 6



IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Trade Union Officials

The Trust has one staff member that is a formal Trade Union Official who spends 20% of their time on Trade

Union business under the Facilities Time Agreement.

Relevant union officials

union officials during the relevant period

Numberof employeeswhowererelevant | FulHime equivalent employee number

1 0.2FTE

Percentage of time spent on facility ime

Percentage of time Nurrber of employees
0%

1-50% 1

51-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost of facility time £23,558
Provide the total pay bill £10,802,368
Provide the percentage of total pay bill spent on 0.22%
facility time, calculated as:
(total cost facility time / total pay bill) x 100
Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 100%

percentage of total paid facility time hours
calculated :

(total hours spent on paid trade union
activities by relevant union officials during the
relevant period / total paid facility time hours) x
100

Related Parties and other connected charities and organisations

There have been no related party transactions during the academic year 2022-23.

Objectives and activities
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Objectives and activities (continued)

Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of iExel Education Trust to provide
excellent education for students of different abilities up to the age of 19.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the charitable company has adopted a 'Scheme of Government’
approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Government specified, amongst other things,
the basis for admitting students to the Trust, the catchment area from which the students are drawn, and that the
curriculums should comply with the substance of the National Curriculum.

The Trust vision is to achieve prosperity and peace by providing outstanding education for all. The mission is that
iExel Education Trust will:

. Inspire pupils to achieve educational excellence within a safe learning environment
. Create a culture that inspires personal growth, development and performance driven outcomes
. Be the beacon of educational excellence within the communities we serve

This will be done by::

. Providing outstanding leadership and educational services that will improve the lives of young learners in
our ever changing and complex society.

. Setting standards of excellence in teaching and learning through the implementation of a well-designed
and bespoke curriculum.

. Having high expectations of all our learners in standards of achievement, behaviour and school
attendance.

. Creating an environment that respects and values the dignity, integrity and speC|aI needs of all our |
earners regardless of age, race, religion and gender.

. Providing a caring and supporting environment for all our learners to develop academically, morally,
spiritually and socially.

. Creating environments where quality relationships are developed between all who work and participate in
the community.

. Creating an awareness, commitment and sense of responsibility amongst our learners with regards to

local, national and global issues.
Nolan Principles

The Trust is underpinned by Nolan's 7 principles of public services:

I, Selflessness
Holders of public office should act sotely in terms of the public interest.

18 Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that
might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to
gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare
and resolve any interests and relationships.

Il Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best
evidence and without discrimination or bias.

IIV.  Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit
themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

V. Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information
should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for doing so.

Vi. Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.

VIl. Leadership
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Objectives and activities (continued)

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should actively
promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

The Trust Culture is a team environment of improving and attaining educational excellence, which is driven by:-

. Doing the right things: Leadership and values
. Doing the things right: Management and processes/procedures

Trust Commitments

Just as every learner is unique the Trust believe every school is also unique. The school improvement model will
be tailored to individual needs.

The Trust will offer:
. A curriculum that will ensure all iearners from all backgrounds will be challenged intellectually and

stimulated morally. The curriculum will ensure successful transition for learners throughout their school life
and their move to an appropriate career progression;

. Aims and values that recognise the individual needs of its learners, cultures and community whilst
remaining conscious that the aims and values of the Trust underpins all its actions;

. Wide and stimulating enrichment programmes;

. Robust governance and leadership underpinned by high level accountability at all levels including;

teaching & learning, financial management and continuous professional development.
Objectives, strategies and activities

The strategies used to achieve above objectives include:

. Tuition and learning opportunities for all students to attain appropriate academic qualifications;
. Training and opportunities for all staff and especially teaching staff;

. A programme of after school activities for all students;

. A career advisory service to help students obtain employment or move on to higher education.

The activities undertaken to achieve these objectives are all intended to provide the highest quality of education
in the public sector for students up to the age of 19.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)

Public benefit

The Trust's aims and achievements are set out within this report and have been undertaken to further its
charitable purposes for the public benefit. The Directors have complied with the duty under Section 4 of the
Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission for
England and Wales and the Directors have considered this guidance in deciding what activities the Trust should
undertake.

As an organisation set up for the public benefit the Trust is aware of its public life obligations and strives to
achieve the Nolan Principles of public service.

The Trust is also aware of its charity obligations to provide public benefit to the greatest number of people
possible and to ensure that the Directors act in a way that avoids any potential conflict of interest. The Directors
are aware that they are there to serve the general public and cannot and should not acquire any personal gain.
The Directors recognise:

. The purpose of the organisation;

. The need to serve the public;

The need to report on the organisation's work/performance to the public;

The need to be open and transparent;

The need to minimise risk and work in the best interest of the public;

The need for decisions to be in the interest of the Trust the public and not allow personal

gain/objectives to interfere with this objective;

. The need to allow all Members of society to access the service we provide;

: The need to observe the laws and regulations that govern the organisation and to follow the spirt of these
rules and regulations.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

IQRA Academy (lA)

The following tables reflects the second national assessments that have been undertaken since 2019. Since this
time there has been a full review of assessments, standardisation and moderation procedures to ensure the
accuracy of the data sets, particularly around teacher assessments.

The 2023 results provide a good foundation for the step change in attainment required to re-establish the school
as outstanding. 2023 attainment and achievement is good. Percentages shown in tables below indicate
percentage of children achieving the expected standard or higher.

Results are
Provisional until
January 2024
KS2 Higher Level 2023 ("j/a)t'°“a' 2023 Results (%)
0

Combined Above 8 8
ARE Standard

- 59 49

All

—Above 27 13
Maths Standard

All 73 61

Reading o 29 18
oldiiddalu

All 73 63

Above

Writing 13 15
Standard

All 71 76
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IEXEL. EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Results are Provisional
until January 2024
2023
Key Stage National 2023 Results
1 (%) (%)
Above
Maths Standard 16 10
All 70 75
Above
Readlng Standard 19 10
All 68 69
Above
Writing Standard 8 5
All 60 68

Future Targets

. The KS2 aspirational targets have been set to achieve Fischer Family Trust (FFT) 5 over a period of 3
years, due to the current position of the academy.

. The aspirational targets were set by the CEO, Principal, Chair of LGB, Chair of Academic Board,
and Chair of Trustees at a joint planning meeting held on 30th September 2022. The resources required
to deliver the aspirational targets were also identified and approved

Bronte Girls’ Academy (BGA)

In 2022/23 at Bronte Girls' Academy, students were on roll in Years 7 to Year 10. There are no external
examinations for these year groups.

Typically, students enter year 7 with attainment that is slightly below national. Students are set aspirational
targets for the end of key stage 3 based on their attainment at key stage 2. Their progress is monitored through
formal termly assessments as well as through formative assessment during lessons. To benchmark the
progress of our students we have used GL Progress tests as well as common assessments with our sister
school, Feversham Girls' Academy which was rated outstanding by Ofsted in March 2022. The results of these
assessments indicate that overall, achievement at Bronte Girls' Academy is high at the end of key stage 3 and at
least in-line with Feversham Girls' Academy.

Internal Assessments

Our end of KS3 data shows that

. Overall, students are attaining in line with their aspirational target - the average grade is B2+ compared to
a target average grade of B2+.

. Most subjects are performing in line with aspirational targets and there are no subjects that are more than
1 sub grade below the aspirational target. This demonstrates exceptional progress across all subjects.

. Pupils are on track to achieve outcomes that are at least in line with Feversham Girls' Academy in the

core subjects English, Maths and Science.
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Strategic report (continued)

IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 -

Achievements and performance (continued)

Year 9 Summer
23 .
Subject Average Grade Aspirational Target Average Grade
Computing B2- B2
DT B2+ B2+
English B2- B2+
French B2= B2+
Geographv B2= B2+
Historv B2= B2+
Maths B2- B2=
PE B2+ B2+
Performing Arts B2- B2+
Religious Studies B2= B2+
Science Combined B2= B2+
Summary B2+ B2+
Year 10 Summer 23
Subject Average Grade Aspirational Target Average Grade
Science Combined 43- 55=
Art & Design 5= 6=
English Language 5 6+
English Literature 5 6+
French 4- 6+
Geography 4- 6+
History 4+ 7-
Maths 3+ 6-
Religious Studies 5= 7-
Sci Biology 7- 7=
Sci Chemistry 6- 7=
Sci Physics 6 7=
Creative Media Production L2M- L2M=
Health & Social Care L1D- L2M=
Sport L2M- L2M=

GL progress tests also provide us with a national benchmark with which to compare our pupils: These indicate
that overall students have made excellent progress against a national cohort in English Maths and Science:
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Average Standardised |Average Standardised Change
Subject Score Sept 2020 (start of| Score July 2023 (end
KS3) of KS3)
English 104.2 (sig+) 103.7 (sig+) -0.5
Maths 100.6 103.8 (sig+) +3.2
Science 97.85 (sig-) 109.3 (sig+) +11.45
. KS3 targets were jointly set by Bronte Girls' Academy and Feversham Girls' Academy.

. Target for summer 2023 (KS3 & KS4) were Fischer Family Trust (FFT) 5 which is identical to
Feversham Girls' Academy target.

. The aspirational targets were set by the CEO, Principal, Chair of LGB, Chair of Academic Board,
and Chair of Trustees at a joint planning meeting held on 30th September 2022. The resources required
to deliver the aspirational targets were also identified and approved.

. Forecast grades have been set cautiously and indicate progress and attainment will be above national
averages. Forecasts for PP and SEN are below national. These groups are a key focus for intervention
and the use of NTP funding.

Feversham Girls' Academy (FGA)

These are the second set of GCSE external examinations since 2019. This cohort of students experienced
significant Covid disruption throughout their last year of KS3 and start of KS4 - no adjustments were
made to examinations or grade boundaries this year to reflect the disruption although this was done last year.

In light of the announcement from JCQ regarding the results being put back in line with 2019, comparisons
have been made against the 2019 results (the 2022 results are included on the table) as these are the most
like for like sets of results. Ofqual announced that grade boundaries this year would differ substantially from
last year in order to bring the grades back in line with 2019 results. This has resulted in grade boundaries
being moved higher so that students must achieve higher marks than last year to be awarded the same grade.
The national figures show a drop across all subjects both at the 9-7 and the 9-4 grades.

. The Attainment 8 score for 2023 is 53 which is in line with 2019 when it was 53.8.
. The average GCSE grade awarded to students has increased from 5=in 2019 to 5+ in 2023.

. Headline Measures — 7 measures have either increased or remamed the same when compared
to 2019 figures.
. Headline measures — when comparing to 2021. In 2021 results were based on internal assessments

with no external exams taking place. The drop between 2021 and 2022 is slightly larger than the drop
between 2020 and 2022 but this is expected to be in line with the national pattern.

Comparlson between 2023 and 2019
Overall average grade has improved to 5+ from 5= for GCSE Subjects

. Overall grade for vocational subjects is Level2 Merit+ which has increased from Level2 Merit-

. 11 subjects out of 17 have improved or maintained their overall average grade when compared to 2019.
. 3 subjects have achieved a third of a grade below (English Language, English Literature and History)

. Top grades of 9-7 have been maintained or improved in Urdu, Religious Studies, Biology, Combined

Science and Chemistry despite the national figures showing a decrease in all subjects.
Page 14



Strategic report (continued)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Achievements and performance (continued)

Subject Comparison National

JCQ have released national figures for Grades 7-9, 4-9 and 1-9 for all students. The table below compared each
subject at Feversham with National figures. The national data shows that for all subjects there has been drop in
figures for both the 7-9 and 4-9 when compared to the national 2022 figures.

Grades 7-9 — 7 subjects out of 12 are above national.

Grades 4-9 — 10 subjects out of 12 are above national.
Overall the national figure for 7-9 grades is 22% compared to Feversham’s 27%.
The overall national figure for 4-3 grades is 68% compared to Feversham's 79%.

IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

All Pupils 2023 2023 2022 2021 2020 201 | 2018
All PP 9
No. of Students 129 44 132 127 129 121 123
Attainment 8 53 51 56.52 59 54 .4 5381 50
6
% Basics Eng+Ma 70 64 73 '82 73 66 68
9-4
% Basics Eng+Ma 10 9 17 20 15 19 11
9-7
Yo EBACC S or 20 23 29 of 32 ! 210
above
—% EBACCZOr 42 34 46 70 52 10 30
above
2/ antaradd faor Q4 04 ZQ Q4 fade] (ale] ol =
U CTIICT U TUT g [ | L% U \eje) ~L JJ
EBACC
Y% 2+—Scrence 4+ 79 84 78 87 91 76 TT
0/ 2 f 3PN ¥ it O folo) o9 2z Falsl Fatal ¥ b 4
/0 7T DUICTIVG JUT JJ U Uo rJ UJ \viv) ST
oL | Y o W | D0 faVal Fatal Fatal QZ FaYal QL
70 LYot =% 00 OouU I Jo o7 JYU OJ
0/ ool QO L 2L ZE QA4 A 4 a0 27 Z
/ULYIHIIOIIJ\J J I J T T U L LY
/ Eaalak O 2 LaTad 2 44 24 (o Tad 20 e w4
U T lulloll T &\J &J b i | ¥ =\J IJ ¥
—S-Meaths-0-4 4 64 +4 83 +5 &F 68
Yo-MathsO-5 4F 39 53 +6 59 56 53
Se-Pathe8-7 18 4 20 34 23 2F H

Post 16 Results 2023

These are the second set of Post 16 examinations since 2019. This cohort of students has not taken part in
external assessments since primary school when they sat their end of KS2 SATs — the GCSE grades were
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

awarded using centre assessed grades only. No external value-added measure will be available this year due
to the lack of KS4 external data available for this cohort.

Ofqual announced that grade boundaries this year would differ substantially from last year in order to bring the
grades back in line with 2019 results. This has resulted in grade boundaries being moved higher so that
students have to achieve higher marks than last year to be awarded the same grade. The national figures
released by JCQ for 2023 show that the movement of these grade boundaries has been more pronounced for
the higher grades as the national figures showing achievement of the top grades of A*-B has fallen from a range
of 4% to over 12% in some subjects.

Average Points Summary Comment

2023 2022 2019

Cohort

w
8]
)]
[V,]
N
Fi-

Size
The average point for all qualifications shows an
upward trajectory since 2019. Despite the rise in grade

All Quals | 37.22 36.81 336 boundaries to bring results in line with 2019, there is

stittasmatt-increasefrom2622t02023:

The average points for A Levels only rose from 2019 to
2022 but had a small decrease from 2022 to 2023. The
rise in the grade boundaries has affected the A Level

A Levels 32.38 32.41 31.15

AvVerage points:.
The average points for all vocational subjects improved

from 2019 to 2022 and then again from 2022 to 2023.

Vocational | 40.32 38.75 34.67
! This has strengthened an already strong performance

i thre vocationat subjects:

National Figures Vs Feversham Girls’ Academy Results (A Level only — vocational national results not

yet available)
JCQ have published national figures for subjects based on the awarded grades. National figures show a
decrease in grades across the A*-B grade allocations in all subjects when compared to the national figures in

2022.
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Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

A Levels National 2023 | Feversham Girls'| Feversham Girls’
Academy 2023 Academy 2022
Subject %A-B %A-E. %A-B %A-E %A-B %A-E
Biology 48.7 957 59 100 43 100
Chemistry 53.8 95.9 44 100 27 100
English 57.9 99.2 46 100 100 100
Literature
Mathematics. 60.0 ag .4 83 100 Q 100
qur‘hnlngy 447 a6 6 25 g8 46 100
Qnr‘inlngy 48.5 Q1.8 83 100 57 100

100% pass rate across the A-Level and the Vocational subjects except for one subject (one student).

The average grade overall for Post 16 is B- which is the same as 2022 despite the changes in grade
boundaries.

The overall average grade for A-Level is C+ which is the same as 2022 and below the aspirational target.
The overall grade for A-Level has been affected by the drop in Psychology grades and the overall grade
has been skewed due to the size of the subject cohort. Had the grades remained consistent with 2022
grades, then the overall A-Level grade would have moved to a grade B.

When comparing the % of A*-B grades for A-Level, 4 subjects out of 6 have improved since last year - this
is against the national trend where the change in grade boundaries have shown a decrease in the % of A*-
B grades being awarded.

3 out of 6 A Level subjects are above national for A*-B grades.

The overall grade for Vocational Subjects is Distinction+ which is the same as 2022 but higher than 2019
and meets the aspirational target.

All Vocational subjects have an average grade of at least a Distinction with 4 of the 6 subjects at a
Distinction+ or Distinction*-.

Future Targets

KS3 targets were jointly set by Bronte Girls' Academy and Feversham Girls' Academy.

Target for summer 2023 KS3 & KS4 was set at Fischer Family Trust {(FFT) 5 which is identical to Bronte
Girls' Academy.

The target for A-Levels results have been set at grade A- for all subjects.

The aspirational targets were set by the CEO, Principal, Chair of LGB, Chair of Academic Board, and
Chair of Trustees at a joint planning meeting held on 30th September 2022. The resources required to
deliver the aspirational targets were also identified and approved.

The results have not reached the aspirational A Level target this year but the trajectory of the higher
grades in A Level subjects, with the exception of Psychology, demonstrate that we are moving toward the
target for next year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

iExel Trust Key performance indicators

The KPIs are designed to analyse financial and commercial risk as well as staffing ratios and academic
performance for iExel as a whole:

Total income per pupil: £6,765

Total GAG income per pupil £5,228

Staff costs per pupil £5,582

Total revenue costs per pupil (excluding Depreciation) £6,918

. Staff costs (excluding Agency supply) as % of total revenue costs 78%
. Staff costs (excluding Agency supply) as % of total income 79.8%
. Pupil to teacher ratio 17:1

Going concern for iExel as a whole

The Directors of the Trust believe the organisation is a going concern both now and into the future. There are no
current concerns that would undermine the financial feasibility of the Trust.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

iExel Trust Current Year Overview

The Trust has had a year of capital investment, spending a total of £1,758,613 of brought forward reserves
during the academic year 2022-23 improving school buildings , fixtures, fittings, equipment, IT equipment and
the re-branding of the Trust to iExel: Capital expenditure during the academic year 2022-23 at each school was:

. IQRA Primary Academy £555,433

. Bronte Girls Academy £536,003

. Feversham Girls Academy £566,221

. Central Team £100,956 {primarily on the re-branding of the Trust).

Trust hold a healthy revenue surplus.
At the end of the financial year the cash in bank was £2,697,000. Current liabilities compared to current assets
(excluding the bank) stood at £512,000. The previous long-term Pension liability of £1,300,000 for West

Yorkshire Pension Fund Assets have been re-valued during 2022-23 and reduced to £nil. There is nothing in the
balance sheet of any concern.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Financial Performance for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

98% of the Trust's income is obtained from the Department of Education (DfE) via the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The
grants received from the DfE/ESFA during the period ended 31 August 2023 and the associated expenditure are
shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also received grants for fixed assets from the DfE/ESFA.

In accordance with The Charities Statement of Recommended practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’
(SORP 2005), such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed
asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected
useful life of the assets concerned.

Additional funding is also received from the LA in the form of a monthly grant and the Trust also delivers an in-
house catering provision across all of academies.

For the period ended 31 August 2023 total expenditure, excluding capital items (charged to the fixed assets
fund) and pension losses was £14,091,000.

During the period covered by the statements the Trust spent £1,7568,000 on Capital Investment which includes:

. Building improvements £1,157,000

. IT equipment £89,000

. Fixtures, fittings, equipment and furniture £485,000

. Intangible assets (rebranding costs of websites) of £27,000.

Of this capital expenditure £54,000 was for the rebranding of the Trust to iExel Education Trust. The capital
expenditure has been funded from brought forward reserves.

All of the expenditure shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is in furtherance of the Trust's objectives. All
of the expenditure shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is in furtherance of the Trust's objectives.

The balance on the revenue reserves at the end of the period (excluding pension fund deficit) stands at
£2,069,000.

At 31 August 2023 net book value of fixed assets was £31,622,000 and movements in intangible and tangible
fixed assets are shown in notes 15 and 16 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services to the students of the Trust.

The Trust held fund balances as at 31 August 2023 of £33,807,000 comprising of £1,696,000 unrestricted funds,
£373,000 restricted general funds, £31,738,000 of restricted fixed asset funds.

All of the expenditure shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is in furtherance of the Trust's objectives.
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Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Future Forecast

The Trust pupil intake remains strong with places significantly over subscribed at FGA and BGA. Pupil numbers
at IQRA are expected to remain static. The Trust expect pupil numbers to remain static or increase over the next
few years. The pupil intake at BGA is expected to remain full for all year groups. This will ensure that the Trust
has a stable income stream moving forward, thus allowing the Trust to remain solvent throughout the next three
years. The levels of cash will be maintained at around £2,500,000 throughout this period and there are no
anticipated cash-flow issues.

The Trust use Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning (ICFP) to develop its budgets together with
benchmarking. All plans are scrutinised for value for money and sustainability.

After making appropriate analysis, the Board of Directors has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

Promoting the success of the Academy Trust

The Members and Directors have considered how the organisation can best serve the interests of pupils,
parents/guardians, staff, business partners, suppliers and the community we serve. The Directors believe the
best way to achieve this is to provide an outstanding education for pupils. The whole drive within the Trust is to
improve continuously the teaching and learning. Constant review is undertaken of teacher's performance and the
impact this is having on pupil attainment and progress. The Trust has an overarching objective to be amongst
the top 10% performing schools/Trust in England. The Trust has two outstanding schools, (FGA and IQRA) and
one still to be assessed by Ofsted (BGA). Every effort is made to achieve and retain an Outstanding Ofsted
inspection. The Trust believes that every child should be given an outstanding education and pupils leaving
school should have the highest possible exam grades.

A significant part of delivering this success is having good relationships and partnerships with pupils, staff,
parents/guardians and suppliers. It also requires strong leadership and management. In order to achieve these
objectives, it is imperative the Trust has tight financial control of all of its assets and utilises them in the best
possible way. The budgeting process is integrated with curriculum planning. The budget takes full account of the
Trust school improvement plans, pupil numbers, curriculum delivery, class sizes, SEND, behaviour and available
income.

The success of the community relies on the success of the Trust. The Trust is educating the community of today
and tomorrow. The community needs well educated, rounded and emotionally intelligent residents to create a
cohesive and fair society. In order for communities to prosper they need a population of people who are
educated and able to generate wealth; people who are committed to giving something back and seek for a just
and equitable society. The Trust believes it has an important role to play in delivering these attributes.

Financial review
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Strategic report (continued)

Central Funding, Reserves and Appeals Policy

The level of reserves is reviewed by Directors regularly throughout the year. The minimum level of reserves for
the ongoing needs of the Trust is reviewed by the Directors on an annual basis. This review encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of
reserves. The Directors therefore consider it is prudent to hold unrestricted reserves in the general fund in the
form of free reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds) equivalent to
approximately 4 weeks' expenditure or £1m.

This is considered sufficient to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to
deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance.

The Trust's current level of free reserves is in surplus by £2,096,000 and therefore are considered to be above
the level of reserves required for the ongoing needs of the Trust. Further capital work on the ablutions area in
Feversham Secondary Academy and the nursery outdoor area at IQRA Primary Academy will be undertaken
during 2024 to improve the learning environment for our pupils.

Pooled reserves are kept to be used in the following four main areas (strategic details linked with the 3-year

strategic plan):

. Educational Excellence: 10% pool for current academies to attain educational excellence and outstanding
status (most likely a 1 to maximum 2-year plan).

. Capital Projects: 45% pool to be used for capital projects and building work where the CIF or other capital
funding is not available. This is to achieve educational excellence.

. Future Growth: 20% pool for future growth in new academies joining the Trust (with stringent conditions
and due diligence: finance, estate, legal, suppliers, etc). This would be over a 3-year spend cycle.

. Contingency Funds: 25% pool for a rainy day'. Again, this would be over a 3-year cycle. Where a
constituent academy or Trust Central is unable to set a balanced in-year budget, reserves may be used to
cover this shortfall on a temporary basis only. Any constituent academy that sets a deficit in-year budget is
required to set a recovery plan, which may include the repayment of reserves that have been used to
balance an in-year budget.

However, these four categories and the percentage share of them can be changed by the Trust Board,
according to strategic direction of the Trust, as detailed in the Central Funding, Reserves and Appeals Policy.

Investment policy

The Board of Directors have authority to deposit and invest funds not immediately required for the furtherance of
the Trust's principle object.

Page 22



IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties are centred on changes in the level of funding from DfE/ESFA. In addition,
the Trust is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which results in the recognition of a
significant deficit on the Trust balance sheet.

The Directors have assessed the major risks, to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating
specifically to teaching provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances. The
Directors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the
operational areas (e.g., in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school visits) and in relation to the
control of finance. Where significant financial risk still remains, they have ensured they have adequate insurance
cover. The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
Governance Statement.

Energy prices have risen significantly over the last twelve months. Typical increases that we have seen are
between 200% and 300%. Schools with historical annual energy costs of £100k are seeing renewals of nearly
£300K.

CPl was 6.8% in the twelve months to July 2023. This is having a significant impact on most costs. In particular,
there have been significant increases in paper and catering costs.

The Trust is covered under a fixed price contract for the energy supply for the next 12 months and a best value
contract has been put in place for 12 months and will be reviewed regularly.

Site Name Current Current Contract End
Supplier Date
Feversham Girls' British Gas 30t September 2024
Academy
Feversham Girls' Gazprom 30th September 2024
Academy -
Feversham Girls' Gazprom 30t September 2024
Academy
Bronte Girls' Academy Pozitive 30t September 2024
Bronte Girls' Academy Gazprom 30t September 2024
IQRA Academy Total Gas & JlstDecember cUs3
Power
IQRA Academy Total Gas & 31st March 2024
Power
— TQRAAcademy Total Gas & 3tstbBecember2023
Power

The Trust is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties in common with other academies. The Trust has in
place procedures to identify and mitigate financial risks.
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The Trust continues to face market pressures of increasing staffing costs with relatively static income per pupil.
As a consequence, the Trust is finding it necessary to scrutinise its cost base continually. The challenge is to
provide an excellent education for all pupils whilst remaining financially solvent. The trust has developed
conservative plans taking account of known information. A thorough review of expenditure and staffing is
continuous as the Trust seeks to ensure strong financial control of its operations.

Under the current economic climate there is uncertainty over the future staff pay increases. The government has
currently given no indications about whether additional funding will be made available either to cover the original
increase and/or any further increases agreed with the trade unions. The Trust included announced pay increases
in the budget to ensure that the budget reflects on accurate picture.

Disabled persons

Lifts, ramps and disabled toilets are installed, and door widths are adequate to enable wheelchair access to all
main areas of the Trust. The policy of the Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and
employees with disabilities. The Trust does this by adapting the physical environment by making support
resources available and through training and career development.

Employee consuitation
The Trust has worked extensively with all relevant Unions to develop its employee engagement.
Fundraising

The Trust do not actively engage in any fundraising activities for it's own benefit however they do encourage and
support students in pursuing socially responsible fundraising for other organisations and causes. No
professional/commercial fundraisers are engaged to work on behalf of the Trust or any of the academies within
the Trust. The Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Directors. The Trust has received no complaints in respect of any of these activities. Pupils are
made aware of the need to be considerate to the needs of others in all their activities and should administer
reasonable care when dealing with the public, avoiding any unreasonable or persistent fundraising approaches
and undue pressure to donate.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Group's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh)
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh):

Gas

Electricity

Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Owned transport

Total scope 1

Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased electricity

Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent):

Intensity ratio:
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil

2023 2022
1,775,576 2,367,434
1,184,313 1,691,875

608,003 675,559
241 309

241 309

98 131

339 440
0.159 0.233

The Group has followed and used the following quantification and reporting methodologies:

. the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;
. the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard; and
. the 2022 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Plans for future periods

The Trust is not-for-profit Multi-Academy Trust (MAT), which aspires to be one of the UK's leading educational
providers. It is a mixed Trust that runs both faith-based and non-faith-based academies. It is a strongly values-
based organisation that works to improve the life chances of young people in areas of social and economic
deprivation, to help them succeed at the highest levels of education, in employment and in the professions.

The Trust grew from humble beginnings in 1984 with 24 pupils, moved to a new site in 1993 to meet the growing
demand for places and became a Voluntary Aided School in 2001 to ensure that the high-quality provision was
accessible by all and not just those who could afford the fees. In 2012 the founder school converted to academy
status and in 2016 formed the Feversham Education Trust, in order to build a network of Academies where
every Academy is high performing or on a clear trajectory to become so. As part of future growth strategy, a
major rebranding exercise was carried out and Feversham Education Trust became iExel Education Trust in
November 2022 with a new logo and a new strapline (Creating Brighter Futures). The Trust currently operates

two secondary academies and a primary academy.
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Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Directors are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Directors' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Directors, as the
company directors, on 29 January 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

t
4-2 ;% "
I

Ali Jan Haider
Chair of Directors
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As accounting officer of iExel Education Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify

the academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,
including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer. As Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between iExel Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible
for reporting to the Board of Directors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Directors’ Report and in the
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities. The Board of Directors has formally met 4 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Directors was as follows:

Directors Meetings attended Out of a possible

Ali Jan Haider (Chair)

Mohammed Saijad Khan (Vice Chair)
Shakoor Ahmed

Geoff Ashton

Irfan Awan

Parwaiz Bashir

Linda Dobson

Mohammed Hussain

Jonaid Khan

Ihtesham ur Rehman

WWNhhAAPRNDWLOW
DAhWARAPDIALADN

The Directors have also done the following during the year: -

Finance & Audit Committee (FAC) is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. Its Terms of Reference set out
its responsibility to conduct a higher degree of financial oversight and due diligence to specific activities carried
out by the Trust and to report its findings back to the full Directors in the year ended 31 August 2023 this
included:

o Review of all financial reporting at each meeting

* Review and interrogation of the proposed 2022/23 budget and long term plan
* Review of the accounts and liaison with the external auditors.

+ Review of finance related policies. ¢  Review of all internal audit reports.

e Oversight of grant funding and spending

e Oversight of regulatory returns and engagement.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Directors Meetings attended Out of a possible
Parwaiz Bashir (Chair of FAC) 4 4
Mohammed Hussain 2 3
Jonaid Khan 0 1
irfan Awan 3 3

Page 28



IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes as well as estate safety and management achieved in return for the
taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Directors where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value
for money during the year by:

e Atleast twice a year review the organisation's structure. This is done considering:

e Pupil numbers

e  Curriculum requirements/Curriculum map/

SEN requirements

Attendance

Behaviour

Pupil progress/attainment

Pupil Premium and closing the gap

e Number of teachers

e SLT/TLR's

e Educational support staff

e  Other support staff

s Impact of all resources

¢ All decisions consider the best value principles of economy, efficiency, and effectiveness.

e The Trust uses a debit card to benefit from online purchasing, while taking in to account the safety and
reputation of the retailer such as Amazon.

» The Trust uses collaborative purchasing with either local schools or nationally tendered contracts.

e All consumable orders are finalised by finance staff who seek best value by directing orders to the most
appropriate supplier. Service level agreements are reviewed and compared with current market trends.

e The principal and the board of Directors regularly review forecasts and staffing requirements. The senior
management team receive regular budgetary updates allowing for fully informed management decisions.

e The Trust has developed its Risk Register to not only mitigate risk that have the potential to drive up cost.
The Risk Register provides a checking point to ensure the Trust focuses on what is important and has the
potential to undermine what the Trust is trying to achieve.

« Centrally negotiating preferred supplier arrangements for the supply of agency staff, MIS, HR etc.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in iExel Education Trust for the Year ending 31

August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The board of Directors have continued to engage with BHP for the internal audits, A schedule of internal

audit/scrutiny has been agreed with the external auditors for the new financial year and similar to last year
external experts will be engaged to assist with any areas of risk were their input would be beneficial.
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Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating.
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Directors is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular. it includes:

e Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors

e Regular reviews by the Audit. Policy and Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans. capital works and expenditure programmes

e Setting targets to measure financial and other performance

e Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

e Delegation of authority and segregation of duties

e Identification and management of risks

The Board of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
BHP Chartered Accountants as internal auditor.

The Board of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and during the academic
year 2022-23 has decided to undertake three intermal scrutiny audit streams, appointing Gallagher for Health
Safety Audits, Dayo Okunlola for SEND Reviews and Jungle IT for a Cyber Security Audit. .

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

e 14 areas of the Trust's financial control procedures along with a review of the financial procedures manual
and scheme of delegation

e 12 areas of the Trust's procurement and banking procedures along with a review of the scheme of
delegation and financial procedures manual in these areas,

e 4 areas of the Trust's fixed asset procedures, along with a review of the financial procedures manual in this
area.

The audit report was presented to the Board of Directors through the audit, policy and finance committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Directors' financial responsibilities.
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Revigw of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

on discharge of the Board of Directors financial decisions to help the committee consider actions and assess
year on year progress

The work of the internal auditor.
The work of the external auditors.
The work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.
. The financial management and governance self-assessment process

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the audit, policy and finance committee and have ensured a plan for continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by:

Ali Jan Haider ) M. Khurshid Khan
Chair of Directors CEO & Accounting Officer
Date: 29 January 2024
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As accounting officer of iExel Education Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust
Board of Directors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Directors are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that no instances of material irreguiarity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Directors and ESFA.

=SS
M. Khurshid Khan

Accounting Officer
Date: 29 January 2024
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Directors (who are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of their incoming resources and
application of resources, including their income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023; )
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group and the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that in their conduct and operation the Group and the charitable
company apply financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been
applied for the purposes intended.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Ali Jan Haider
Chair of Directors
Date: 29 January 2024
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of lexel Education Trust (the 'parent academy trust’) and its
subsidiaries (the 'Group') for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Activities, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Academy Trust Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Academy Trust's affairs as at 31
August 2023 and of the Group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the parent Academy
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information inciuded in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Directors' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent academy trust and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors’ Report
including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the parent Academy Trust has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent Academy Trust financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

. certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Directors (who are also the directors
of the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud cr error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. Our audit must be alert to the risk of manipulation of the financial statements and seek to
understand the incentives and opportunities for management to achieve this.

We undertake the following procedures to identify and respond to these risks of non-compliance:

¢ Understanding the key legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Trust. We communicated
identified laws and regulations throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
noncompliance throughout the audit. We determined the most significant of these to be the regulations set
out by the DfE/ESFA. Our audit focuses on financial matters as set out in our regularity opinion. Other key
laws and regulations included safeguarding, Health & Safety, GDPR and employment law

e Enquiry of Trustees and management as to policies and procedures to ensure compliance and any known
instances of non-compliance

¢ Review of Board minutes and correspondence with regulators

¢ Enquiry of Trustees and management as to areas of the financial statements susceptible to fraud and how
these risks are managed

¢ Challenging management on key estimates, assumptions and judgements made in the preparation of the
financial statements. These key areas of uncertainty are disclosed in the accounting policies

¢ Identifying and testing unusual journal entries, with a particular focus on manual journal entries.

Through these procedures, we did not become aware of actual or suspected non-compliance.

We planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards but owing to the inherent limitations
of procedures required in these areas, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected a material
misstatement in the accounts. The further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve concealment, collusion, forgery, misrepresentations, or override of internal controls. We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws
and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Group's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust
and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Céu& O"‘- ("“P

Christopher Beaumont BA (Hons) BFP FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Clive Owen LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

140 Coniscliffe Road

Darlington

County Durham

DL3 7RT

29 January 2024
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 September 2022 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by iExel Education Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to iExel Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to iExel Education Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than iExel Education Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this
report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of iExel Education Trust's Accounting Officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of iExel Education Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated December 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

- Review of governing body and committee minutes;

— Review of termly Internal Assurance reports;

— Completion of self assessment questionnaire by Accounting Officer;

- Review documentation provided to Directors and Accounting Officer setting out responsibilities;
— Obtain formal letters of representation detailing the responsibilities of Directors;
— Review of payroll, purchases and expenses claims on a sample basis;

— Confirmation that the lines of delegation and limits set have been adhered to;
— Evaluation of internal control procedures and reporting lines;

— Review cash payments for unusual transactions;

— Review of credit card transactions;

— Review of registers of interests;

— Review related party transactions;

— Review of borrowing agreements;

— Review of land and building transactions;

— Review of potential and actual bad debts;

— Review an instance of gifts/hospitality to ensure in line with policy;

— Review whistleblowing procedures;

— Review pay policy and factors determining executive pay;

— Review of staff expenses;

— Review other income to ensure is in line with funding agreement;

— Review governance structure and number of meetings held; and

— Review whether there is a risk register in place.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO IEXEL
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED) ’

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Cé‘—ﬂ— Qe e/

Clive Owen LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

140 Coniscliffe Road
Darlington

County Durham

DL3 7RT

Date 8¢ January 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants:

Other donations and
capital grants

Other trading activities
Investments
Charitable activities:

academy trust
educational operations

Total income

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

academy trust
educational operations

Other charitable
activities

Total expenditure

Net (expenditure)
lincome

Transfers

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes

Asset ceiling restriction

Net movement in
funds

Note

19

25

IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
28 - 94 122 93
49 28 - 77 71
- - - - 1
320 13,262 - 13;582 11,871
397 13,290 94 13,781 12,036
320 13,771 999 15,090 13,715
- - - - 6
320 13,771 999 15,090 13,721
77 (481) (905) (1,309) (1,685)
- (1,759) 1,759 - -
77 (2,240) 854 (1,309) (1,685)
- 1,870 - 1,870 5,237
- (328) - (328) -
77 (698) 854 233 3,552
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 - 2023 2022
~ Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought
forward 1,619 1,071 30,884 33,574 30,022
Net movement in funds 77 (698) 854 233 3,552
Total funds carried
forward 1,696 373 31,738 33,807 33,574
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Fixed assets

Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07697587

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

.Note

14
15

16

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year

Net current assets

17

Creditors: amounts falling due after more

than one year

18

Net assets excluding pension asset /

liability

Defined benefit pension scheme asset /

liability

Total net assets

25
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2023

£000

20

31,602

31,622
517
2,697
3,214

(1,029)

2,185

33,807

33,807

2022
£000
30,864
30,864
362
3,911
4,273
(256)
4,017
(7)
34,874
(1,300)
33,574
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07697587

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2022

Note £000 £000
Funds of the academy trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 19 31,738 30,884
Restricted income funds 19 373 2,371
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 19 32,111 33,255
Pension reserve 19 - (1,300)
Total restricted funds 19 32,111 31,955
Unrestricted income funds 19 1,696 1,619
Total funds 33,807 33,574

The financial statements on pages 42 to 81 were approved by the Directors, and authorised for issue on 29
January 2024 and are signed on their behalf, by:

A-%

Ali Jan Haider
Chair of Directors
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07697587

ACADEMY TRUST BALANCE SHEET

Fixed assets

Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension asset /
liability

Defined benefit pension scheme asset /
liability

Total net assets

14
15

16

17

18

25

Note
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AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

2023
£000

20
31,602

31,622

517
2,697

3,214

(1,029)
2,185

33,807

33,807

33,807

2022
£000

30,864

30,864

362
3,911

4,273

(256)
4,017
34,881
(7)
34,874
(1,300)

33,574



IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07697587

ACADEMY TRUST BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Funds of the academy trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds .19 29,979 30,487
Restricted income funds 19 2,104 2,937
Restricted funds excluding pension asset / - -
liability 19 32,083 33,424
Pension reserve 19 - (1,300)
Total restricted funds 19 32,083 32,124
Unrestricted income funds
Unrestricted income funds 19 1,724 1,450
Total unrestricted income funds 19 1,724 1,450
Total funds 33,807 33,574

The financial statements on pages 42 to 81 were approved by the Directors, and authorised for issue on 29
January 2024 and are signed on their behalf, by:

=

Ali Jan Haider
Chair of Directors
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 21 449 224
Cash flows from investing activities 22 (1,663) (433)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year (1,214) (209)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,91 4,120
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23, 24 2,697 3,911

-~
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies

11

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

iExel Education Trust constitues a public entity as defined by FRS 102.

The Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) and Balance Sheet consolidate the financial statements
of the Academy Trust and its subsidiary undertaking.

No separate SOFA has been presented for the Academy Trust alone as permitted by section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Group at the discretion of the Directors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Group has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The
balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the
relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entittement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Group has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Group on conversion to an academy, the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when the risks
and rewards of ownership pass to the Group. An equal amount of income is recognised as a transfer
on conversion within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' to the net assets received.

Transfer of existing academies into the Group
Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Group, the .
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Group. An equal amount of income is recognised for
the transfer of an existing academy into the Group within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants'
to the net assets acquired.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Group)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance
with the Group's accounting policies.
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Group's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Going concern

The Directors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Directors make this assessment in respect
of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of iExel Education Trust and all of its
subsidiary undertaking. Note that it ceased trading in the previous accounting year.

The Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption contained within Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 not to present its own Income and Expenditure Account.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of
amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on
a straight-line basis over its expected useful life.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software - 3 years straight line
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IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the
Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset
fund in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives
on the following bases:

Freehold property - 50 years straight line
Leasehold Buildings - 50 years straight line
Leasehold Land - Over the life of the lease
Computer equipment - 3 years straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 5 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying

value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment

losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities.
Leased assets

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Activities on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.10 Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.11 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settiement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.12 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Group
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.15 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the academy trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any
impairment. Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the academy trust's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.16 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Group are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Group in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains
and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.17 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments
received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of
financial activities as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The
trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in
the statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed
in note 29.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. In the current year the
actuary has made assumptions to estimate the liability associated with McCloud Sargeant (McCloud) and
GMP Indexation and Equalisation (GMP).

Depreciation — Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its residual value,
over the economic life of that asset. An estimate of the useful life of assets is detailed in the depreciation
accounting policy. The value of depreciation charge during the year was £993,000.

Amortisation — Amortisation is calculated so as to write off the costs of an asset, less its residual value,
over the economic life of that asset. An estimate of the useful life of assets is detailed in the amortisation
accounting policy. The value of amortisation charge during the year was £6,000.

Goodwin - The case related to male spouse or civil partner of a female member is treated in the same way
as a same-sex spouse or civil partner. Survivor benefits will be calculated using service from 1 April 1972,
or 6 April 1978 if the marriage or civil partnership took place after the last day of pensionable service. This
change will apply for deaths in respect of female members which occurred from 5 December 2005, which
is the date that same-sex civil partnerships were introduced. This case was brought against the Teachers’
Pension Scheme. Actuaries have estimated that the impact of Goodwin indexation to be less than 0.1% of
total liabilities. Based on this estimate it would increase liabilities by £6,608 which has been assessed to
be immaterial to the financial statements.

Critical areas of judgment:

Land and buildings — Land and buildings at Feversham College are held under a 125 year lease from the
Muslim Association of Bradford. The playing fields are held under a 125 year lease from Bradford MDC.
These assets are included on the balance sheet of the academy trust due to the significant risks and
rewards of ownership belonging to the academy trust, the lease term being the major part of the economic
life of the assets and the assets being of such a specialised nature that only the academy trust could use
them without major modification.

Land and buildings at IQRA Primary Academy are held under a 125 year lease from the Muslim
Association of Bradford. The playing fields are held under a 125 year lease from Bradford MDC. These
assets are included on the balance sheet of the academy trust due to the significant risks and rewards of
ownership belonging to the academy trust, the lease term being the major part of the economic life of the
assets and the assets being of such a specialised nature that only the academy trust could use them
without major modification.

Land and buildings at Bronte Girls' Academy are held under a 125 year lease from the Muslim Association
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Critical accounting estimates énd areas of judgment (continued)

of Bradford. The playing fields are held under a 125 year lease from Bradford MDC. These assets are
included on the balance sheet of the academy trust due to the significant risks and rewards of ownership
belonging to the academy trust, the lease term being the major part of the economic life of the assets and
the assets being of such a specialised nature that only the academy trust could use them without major
modification.

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Donations 28 - 28 -
Capital Grants - 94 94 93
Total 2022 oo 93 93
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Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Academy’s educational operations
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 10,559 10,559 10,191
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Start Up Grants - 91 91 123
Pupil Premium - 556 556 509
PE and Sport Premium - 21 21 21
UIFSM - 87 87 1M
Teachers' pay grant - 2 2 12
Teachers' pension grant ' - : 37 37 34
Other DfE Group grants - 115 115 93
Supplementary grants - 472 472 124
- 11,940 11,940 11,218
Other Government grants
SEN - 26 26 51
Early Years Funding - 142 142 136
Local Authority grants - 89 89 68
16-19 Grants - 949 949 -
- 1,206 1,206 255
Other income from the academy trust's
academy’s educational operations 320 - 320 243
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 116 116 155
- 116 116 155
320 13,262 13,582 11,871
320 13,262 13,582 11,871
Total 2022 245 11,626 11,871
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Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Other income 49 28 77 71
Investment income
) Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000
Investment income - - 1
Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises : Other Total Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Academy Trust's educational
operations:
Direct costs 9,731 - - 9,731 7.680
Allocated support costs 1,640 1,457 2,262 5,359 6,035
Operation of Feversham First
Steps - - - - 6
11,371 1,457 2,262 15,090 13,721
Total 2022 9,977 1,270 2,474 13,721
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Expenditure (continued)

In 2023, of the total expenditure, £320,000 (2022 - £251,000) was to unrestricted funds and £14,770,000

(2022 - £13,470,000) was to restricted funds.
No individual unrecoverable debts were above £5.,000

There were no individual transactions exceeding £5,000 for:
- Compensation payments

- Gifts made by the academy trust

- Fixed asset losses

- Stock losses

- Cash losses.

There were no ex-gratia payments during the period.

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities

undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Academy Trust's educational operations 9,731 5,359 15,090 13,715
Operation of Feversham First Steps - - - 6
9,731 5,359 15,090 13,721

Total 2022 7,686 6,035 13,721
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Educational supplies

Examination fees

Staff development

Technology costs

Educational consultancy

Staff expenses

Other costs

Operation of FevershamFirstSteps: Direct costs
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£000 £000
8,806 6,898
669 423
157 122
69 61

12 16

4 142

14 5

- 13

- 6
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Total Total

funds funds

2023 2022

£000 £000
Net interest cost on pension scheme 44 93
Staff costs 2,565 3,079
Depreciation 999 1,022
Technology costs 226 268
Staff expenses 30 16
Transport 102 50
Maintenance of premises 282 210
Cleaning 38 17
Other premises costs 23 23
Energy 188 203
Rent & rates - 36 105
Insurance 45 53
Catering 350 378
Legal costs - other 114 232
Security - 1
Other costs 252 221
Governance costs 65 64

5,359 6,035
Net income/(expenditure)
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Operating lease rentals 17 4
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 993 1,022
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 11
Fees paid to auditors for:
- audit 18 18
- other services 10 8
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Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Academy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Wages and salaries 8,502 6,958 8,502 7,397
Social security costs 829 605 829 605
Pension costs 1,667 1,975 1,667 1,975
10,998 9,638 10,998 9,977

Agency staff costs ' 373 439 373 -
11,371 9,977 11,371 9,977

Included in operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes is £198,000 (2022: £827,000) relating to

the pension deficit actuarial adjustment.

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Group and the academy trust during the year was as

follows:

Group Group

2023 2022

No. No.

Teachers 125 118
Educational support 192 189
Other 6 3
323 310
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Staff (continued)
c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

Group Group

2023 2022

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 6 5
in the band £70,001 - £80,000 3 -

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 ' 1 1

In the band £90,001 - £100,000 2 1

In the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1

In the band £140,001 - £150,000 1 -

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Directors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the academy trust was £773,000 (2022 : £1,217,000).

Central services

The Group has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Advisory services

Governance and compliance services
Professional fees

Academy improvement consultancy
Recruitment and advertising

The Group charges for these services on the following basis:

Charges are made on a flat percentage of GAG income (7% for secondary schools and 6% for the
primary school).

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Bronte Girls' Academy 591 186
Feversham Girls' Academy 423 345
IQRA Academy 133 167
Total 1,147 698
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Directors' ,remu'neration and expenses

During the year, no Directors received any remuneration or other benefits (2022 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totalling £506 were reimbursed or paid directly to 1
Director (2022 - £NIL to Director).

Directors' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect

Directors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for

14.

the year ended 31 August 2023 was not separately identifiable from the total insurance cost.

Intangible assets

Group

Software

£000

Cost
At 1 September 2022 12
Additions 26
At 31 August 2023 38
Amortisation
At 1 September 2022 12
Charge for the year 6
At 31 August 2023 18
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 20

At 31 August 2022
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Intangible assets (continued)

Academy Trust

Cost
At 1 September 2022
Additions

At 31 August 2023

Amortisation
At 1 September 2022
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2023

Net book value

At 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2022
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Tangible fixed assets

Group

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2022
Additions

At 31 August 2023
Depreciation

At 1 September 2022
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2023

Net book value

At 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2022

IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Furniture

Freehold Leasehold and Computer Motor
property property fixtures equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
553 34,460 818 1,205 17 37,053
- 1,157 485 89 - 1,731
553 35,617 1,303 1,294 17 38,784
25 4,776 421 950 17 6,189
12 674 160 147 - 993
37 5,450 581 1,097 17 7,182
516 30,167 722 197 - 31,602
528 29,684 397 255 - 30,864

Page 66



15.

16.

IEXEL EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Academy Trust

Long-term  Furniture

Freehold leasehold and  Computer Motor
property property equipment equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation :
At 1 September 2022 553 34,460 818 1,205 17 37,053
Additions - 1,157 485 89 - 1,731
At 31 August 2023 553 35,617 1,303 1,294 17 38,784
Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 25 4,776 421 950 17 6,189
Charge for the year 12 674 160 147 - 993
At 31 August 2023 37 5,450 581 1,097 17 7,182
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 516 30,167 722 197 - 31,602
At 31 August 2022 - 528 29,684 397 255 - 30,864
Debtors
Academy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 42 1 42 1
Other debtors - 51 - 51
Prepayments and accrued income 251 160 251 160
VAT recoverable 224 140 224 140
517 362 517 362
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Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Academy Academy

Group Group Trust Trust

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade creditors 510 16 510 15
Other taxation and social security 196 163 196 163
Other creditors 12 5 12 5
Accruals and deferred income 3N 73 311 73
1,029 256 1,029 256

Academy Academy

Group Group Trust Trust

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 31 54 31 54

Resources deferred during the year 12 - 12 -

Amounts released from previous periods (31) (23) (31) (23)
12 31 12 31

At the Balance Sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for UIFSM and

school trips taking place in 2023/24.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group

2023 2022

£000 £000

Other creditors - 7

Academy
Trust
2023
£000

Academy
Trust
2022
£000

7

A loan of £30,000 from Salix Finance Ltd is provided on the following terms:

» £4.286 is repaid annually over 7 years, the final repayment will be made in September 2024.

e This is an interest free loan
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Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,619 397 (320) - - 1,696
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grants (GAG) 2,370 10,559 (10,797) (1,759) - 373
Start Up Grants - 91 (91) - - -
Pupil Premium - 556 (556) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
COVID-19
funding - 1,684 (1,684) - - -
SEN - 26 (26) - - -
Other
Government
grants - 231 (231) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
COVID-19
funding 1 115 (116) - - -
Donations - 28 (28) - - -
Pension reserve (1,300) - (242) - 1,542 -
1,071 13,290 (13,771) (1,759) 1,542 373
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE/ESFA
capital grants 2,307 94 (35) - - 2,366
GAG 270 - (297) 1,759 - 1,732
Asset transfer on
conversion 28,307 - (667) - - 27,640
30,884 94 (999) 1,759 - 31,738
Total Restricted
funds 31,955 13,384 (14,770) - 1,542 32,11
Total funds 33,574 13,781 (15,090) - 1,542 33,807
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Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running of the academy including salaries
and related costs, overheads, repairs and maintenance, and insurance.

Pupil Premium is additional funding to be spent és the school sees fit to support deprived students."
SEN income to support students with special educational needs.

Other DfE/ESFA Grants also includes the PE and sport premium grant, rates relief, teachers’ pay grant
and teachers’ pension grant.

Other Government grants includes Growth Funding and other income from the local authority.

The pension reserves is the liability due to the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme. Further
details are shown in note 26.

The restricted fixed asset funds represent monies received to purchase fixed assets. Depreciation is
charged against each fund over the useful economic life of the associated assets.

Unrestricted funds include the income from uniform sales, school trips and catering with the relevant costs
allocated accordingly.

A transfer of £1,759,000 has been made to capital expenditure from GAG to reflect those items included
within fixed assets which have been purchased using GAG monies.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.
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Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,547 317 (245) - - 1,619
Feversham First
Steps 6 - (6) - - -
1,553 317 (251) - - 1,619
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grants (GAG) 2,664 10,191 (10,094) (391) - 2,370
Start Up Grants - 123 (123) - - -
Pupil Premium - 509 (509) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
COVID-19
funding - 21 (21) - - -
SEN - 111 (111) - - -
Teachers' Pay
and Pension
grants - 46 (46) - - -
SEN - 51 (51) - - -
Local Authority
grants - 68 (68) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
COVID-19
funding - 154 (154) - - -
Other income
from academies - (3) 3 - - -
Other DfE/EFSA - 219 (218) - - 1
Early years
funding - 136 (136) - - -
Pension reserve (5,617) - (920) - 5,237 (1,300)
(2,953) 11,626 (12,448) (391) 5,237 1,071
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE/ESFA
capital grants 2,250 93 (36) - - 2,307
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
GAG 192 - (313) 391 - 270
Asset transfer on
conversion 28,980 - (673) - - 28,307
31,422 93 (1,022) 391 - 30,884
Total Restricted
funds 28,469 11,719 (13,470) - 5,237 31,955
Total funds 30,022 12,036 (13,721) - 5,237 33,574
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Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

Bronte Girls' Academy
Feversham Girls' Academy
IQRA Academy

Central Services

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total

2023 2022
£000 £000
36 426
1,913 2,481
383 1,072
(263) 11
2,069 3,990
31,738 30,884
- (1,300)
33,807 33,574

The trust has invested significantly in the schools and central services during the year. The expectation
is that the central services fund will be brought back into surplus within the next two years reflecting the

savings arising from some of that

Total cost analysis by academy

investment.

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff Educational excluding Total Total
costs costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bronte Girls'
Academy 2,429 382 163 510 3,484 2,729
Feversham Girls'
Academy 3,865 561 250 790 5,466 5,420
IQRA Academy 2,358 488 239 489 3,574 3,329
Central Services 725 515 18 309 1,567 1,221
Academy Trust 9,377 1,946 670 2,098 14,091 12,699
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 31,602 31,602
Intangible fixed assets - - 20 20
Current assets 1,696 1,402 116 3,214
Creditors due within one year - (1,029) - (1,029)
Total 1,696 373 31,738 33,807
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 30,864 30,864
Current assets 1,580 2,673 20 4,273
Creditors due within one year 39 (295) - (256)
Creditors due in more than one year - 7) - (7)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1,300) - (1,300)
Total 1,619 1,071 30,884 33,574
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Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Dividends, interest and rents from investments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
£000 £000
(1,309) (1,685)
999 1,033
(94) (89)
198 827
44 93
(297) 99
908 (53)
- M
449 224
Group Group
2023 2022
£000 £000
- 1
(1,757) (523)
94 89
(1,663) (433)
Group Group
2023 2022
£000 £000
2,697 3,911
2,697 3,911
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Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September . At 31 August
2022  Cash flows 2023
£000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand ' 3,911 (1,214) 2,697
3,911 (1,214) 2,697

Pension commitments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Yorkshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2022 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers'’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2019. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

) employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
‘notional past service deficit of £22,000 million ' '

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,000,000 (2022 - £833,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Group has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Group has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £552,000 (2022 -
£447,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £400,000 (2022 - £322,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 152,000 (2022 - £125,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
15.5% for employers and 5.5 - 12.2% for employees. :

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023

%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 26
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.9
Inflation assumption (CPI) 26
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 75

2022
%

3.95
2.7
4.0
2.7

75

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

2023 2022
Years Years
21.0 21.8
241 24.6
22.2 225
25.1 25.7
2023 2022
£000 £000
(172) (188)
178 188
(165) (194)
165 194
165 161
(159) (161)
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Pension commitments (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The Group's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 August At 31 August

2023 2022

£000 £000
Equities 5,632 4,315
Government bonds 437 346
Corporate bonds 319 232
Property 236 211
Cash and other liquid assets 257 216
Other 55 81
Total market value of assets 6,936 5,401
The actual return on scheme assets was £1,115,000 (2022 - £128,000).
The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Current service cost (598) (1,150)
Interest income 225 91
Interest cost (269) (184)
Total amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Activities (642) (1,243)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Opening defined benefit obligation 6,487 10,561
Current service cost 598 1,150
Interest cost 269 184
Employee contributions 152 126
Actuarial gains (980) (5,456)
Benefits paid (132) (78)
Asset ceiling restriction 328 -
Closing defined benefit obligation 6,722 6,487
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Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Group's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 5,401 5,158
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension
liability) 225 91
Actuarial gains/(losses) 890 (219)
Employer contributions 400 323
Employee contributions 152 126
Benefits paid (132) (78)
At 31 August 6,936 5,401

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Group and the academy trust had commitments to make future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Academy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts payable
Within 1 year 17 4 17 4
Between 1 and 5 years 41 13 41 13
58 17 58 17
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Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Ttrust and the composition of the Board of Directors being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the directors have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Ttrust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.

The following related party transaction took place in the year:
Expenditure related party transaction
Feversham First Steps Limited

During the year an intercompany loan of £nil (2022: £8,010) was made to Feversham First Steps Limited,
a 100% owned subsidiary.

The daughter in law of A J Haider, a Trustee, is employed by the Academy Trust at BGA since 1
September 2021. Her appointment was made in open competition and A J Haider was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. The daughter in law is paid within the normal pay scale
for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

The brother of S Khan, a Trustee, is employed by the academy trust as the CEO at Central Team since 1
September 2021. His appointment was made in open competition and S Khan was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. The brother is paid within the normal pay scale for his
role and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a trustee.

The nephew of S Azam, a Member, is employed by the Academy Trust at Central Team since 17
December 2018. His appointment was made in open competition and S Azam was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. The nephew is paid within the normal pay scale for his
role and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a trustee.

The wife of J Khan, a Trustee, is employed by the Academy Trust at FGA since 1 October 2019. Her
appointment was made in open competition and J Khan was not involved in the decision-making process
regarding appointment. The wife is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special
treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

The son of MK Khan, CEO, and the nephew of S Khan, a Trustee, is employed by the Academy Trust at
Central Team since 19 April 2022. His appointment was made in open competition and K Khan and S
Khan were not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. The son is paid within the
normal pay scale for his role and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a Trustee.

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2023 the trust received £42,364 (2022: £34,000) and disbursed £42364 (2022:
£34,000) from the fund. The Academy Trust charged £nil (2022: £1,000) for administration fees. An
amount of £nil (2022: £nil) is included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable
to ESFA. .
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